REGULAR MEETING
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NASHVILLE
COUNTY OF BERRIEN
October 14, 2008

INVOCATION: Henry Yawn
PLEDGE: Pledge of Allegiance was led by Alderman Turner
WELCOME: Alderman Turner

ROLL CALL: Members of the City Council present included Aldernder.
Watts, Bill Turner, Billy Retterbush, and Scott Stkima

STAFF PRESENT: Tina Haughton, Chief Jimmy Clayton, Tommy Davis, John
Reynolds, Henry Yawn, City Manager Mandy Luke, and Citiovkey Mitchell
Moore.

OTHERS PRESENT: Randall Milton, Nicole Robinson, John Hunkele, Antonio
Carter, Fern Turner, and John Black.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS: City Attorney
Mitchell Moore asked for a correction on the previous mmukée said on page
four the name of the Creek should be Reedy Creek not Geeskbk. Alderman
Stalnaker made a motion to approve the minutes with thegeh The motion was
seconded by Alderman Retterbush, and the motion carriedmoasly.

ADOPTION OF FORMAL AGENDA- City Attorney, Mitchell Moore asked for
a brief Executive Session to be added to the agenda. Alde&Stablraker made the
motion to approve the formal agenda with the additioldeAnan Retterbush
seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Coastal Engineering’s Report-John Hunkele updated the Council on the
Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Plant. He sasé sur last report on
September 22, we have received approval of the Environnmafdaahation
Document (EID). This approval letter was dated SeptembaN2dhave now
submitted the Design Development Report (DDR) whicheslast approval
required before we begin preparation of the final constmilans. We have
selected a structural consultant for the WWTP Projemtt Bity Design Group,
LLC). We have identified a number of potential electriedd-sonsultants and
expect a selection within the next 30 days. John also rep@uesuant to the last
meeting, we have revised the project to reflect Phasimgsdone involves
improvements to the wastewater collection and transonisystem and other
rehab projects which we are moving forward with now in teofreccelerated plan
preparation, bidding and construction. Phase two invohesamainder of the
new construction. The estimated breakdown is as foll®\uase (1)
$1,000,000.00; Phase (2) $4,600,000.00 for the total of $5,600,000.00. This
information has been forwarded to Bill Powell so that hg maommend a phased
rate increase to the City of Nashville Council. John umbtte group on the
Stream Buffer Variance. He said on Octob®8an Shepherd with EPD in
Atlanta acknowledged receipt of our buffer variance apptioadind confirmed



that it is a complete application package and thatubhder review. Ms. Shepherd
intends to discuss a few issues with her supervisor areleglthey can work with
us on the emergency repair portion of the work. They regyest additional
details on the remainder of the work on this ditch sectiida inquired as to the
possibility of obtaining a city wide variance for drainaggimtenance purposes.
She advised that they review buffer variance requestaseby case basis and
that a city wide or annual variance does not seem to heragbssibility.
However, she did agree to discuss this with her supersseehand promised to
get back with us as soon as possible. John said no furtpenseshas been
received to date and we will continue to push for a resoiutMitchell Moore
asked John Hunkele if he asked Ms. Shepherd with EPD abouethedt art”
state waters. John said yes he did ask her that questisha said it is really up to
the local issuing authority to make that determinationciwiarould be you. He
said we are going to try to find some sort of resolutiothamin the next couple of
weeks, and it may involve me and Henry Yawn looking at eathese ditches
and rule out the ones we can safely say are not stdégsyand the others we will
probably have to approach them on a case by case basis ndaa@nmces for the
ones that really need to be done. He added hopefully wershadme sort of
middle ground on the applications for variances ontifeasis and creeks, due to
the expense of surveying them and all the paper work ind@pelying to get the
variances for just one creek or stream.

2. Library Board Appointment- Alderman Turner said the City has received a
request from the library board that Gail Benjamin, @ncator at the Berrien
Primary School, be appointed to serve as a board member wiliible effective

at the board’s next meeting in November. Ms. Benjamihbeilreplacing Dr.
Florence Moffett who has served as the city’s repreteatan the Carrie Dorsey
Perry Memorial Library Board of Trustees since 1999h&nrequest it was noted
that in accordance with the board’s constitution a memiagrgarve three
successive terms of three years for a total of ninesy#favas also noted that Dr.
Moffett has served well and ably during this period of tini@ée board made the
recommendation that Ms. Benjamin be appointed to serveiattbgust meeting.
The City has two representatives who serve on the boasd.9ve Whidden is the
other representative who was appointed in 2000 and has agreeektthee
remainder of her term through May 2009. The Council needs ¢ocovothe
recommendation. Alderman Retterbush made a motion toragpail Benjamin to
the Library Board. Alderman Stalnaker seconded the motidritenmotion
carried unanimously.

3. Opening of Bids for Sidewalk-Alderman Turner told the group at the
September 2¥ meeting the Council voted to call for bids on the contitnof a
sidewalk at Dr. Jeff Cox’s office located on the correbouth Bartow and West
McPherson. Bids for this construction are as folloRess Construction from
Nashville bids $4,860.00. LBP Concrete from Waycross bids $4,000.00&wl
Contractors from Valdosta bids $6,312.00. Alderman Retterbudk maotion to
go with the lowest bid from LBP Concrete from Waycrfiss$4,000.00. The
motion was seconded by Alderman Watts, and the motioirdarnanimously.

4. Bids on Repairing Street SweeperMandy Luke asked to make a correction
on this item because it should read estimates on repaiergfreet sweeper which
has been down for a month. She said we have receivedcoampfaints from
different citizens and Tommy Davis has asked for esésan repairs beginning

in September. She said the first estimate is from MiReito located in Nashville



for $1,317.60. Quality Auto located in Nashville estimated $1,634.Qan4l
Tractor Company located in Albany estimated $2,049.00 and they fmetght is
not included on their estimate. Mandy added the estinnatkgled an estimated
time for repairs, and two to three days after parts aeswed is the estimated time.
Tommy Davis added the parts for the Sweeper will be ordem@dlzEpped from
three different places so the time for repairs may aditgle. Alderman Turner
said he wanted to note he has a problem with estimatet&iost called for
instead of bids, due to the estimated cost for repairs owst can be added and if
bids were called for the bid would not have extra cost addedldarman
Stalnaker said since we are getting complaints ansvileeper has been down for
a month we should go ahead and vote on the lowest estinthgetit fixed.
Alderman Retterbush concurred and motioned to go witlhoiledt estimate.
Mitchell Moore told Tommy to get confirmation and havdacumented from the
lowest estimate and hold them to it, before the work ieedm the sweeper.
Tommy said yes all the estimates include that stipriathlderman Stalnaker
seconded the motion to go with Mike’s Auto for $1,317.60 and fixstheeper,
and the motion carried unanimously.

5. First Reading of Red Flag Ordinance-Mitchell Moore presented and
discussed the Ordinance briefly at the Septemb¥maeting. This is an
Ordinance which will amend the Code of Ordinances ferGhy of Nashville. It
will provide a new Section 29-110, Article 1V; which wileals with the identity
theft prevention program. This will bring the City in cdrapce with Federal
Regulations relating to address discrepancies, red flagslantity theft. Mitchell
asked the Council to review the drafted copy. He made some snggder
changes to the draft, and asked the Council to reviewdtthenfinal draft will be
submitted and read at the Octobel Zbuncil meeting.

REPORTS

6. City Manager/Finance Director’'s Report- Mandy Luke told the group the
City has received some new updated flood maps and a meellibg Wweld at the
County Administration Building tomorrow from 11:00 am to 2:00 fom
Community Officials and from 12:00 to 2:00 pm for the pudVlandy told the
group a while back she came before Council about contragtihgsMA on
delinquent utility bill collections. She said aftereeything was submitted, the
company RDS, that GMA uses pulled out and no longer provides sapsices.
GMA has not found anyone to replace the company. Mandya$@r | became
aware of this | contacted the Credit Bureau Associdt&#ton, which is a
company The City of Tifton started using for their cdiiens once RDS pulled out
on GMA. She said they gave the same rates as GMA vi;125%. She said they
handle all the letters, phone calls for collectidbsedit Bureau Associates will set
up a way for the person to pay at the City or theicceffMandy said the advantage
in going with Credit Bureau is they will automatigateport the past due on the
individual's credit report and most of the other compad@sot report it
automatically. She added most people don’t care about paytrapi#sn’t get
reported to their credit report. Mandy said the Council doéave to make any
decisions tonight but she wants them to consider conigaatith Credit Bureau
Associates due to the large amount of past due utiliy. he gave an example of
how the utility bills become past due and uncollecte@ dustomer will get
behind on the bill, have the services cut off and allond#gosit to cover the
outstanding bill, but most of the time the deposit will mter the total amount of



the outstanding bill. They will then get someone atsé&le the home to place the
water and gas in their name and put down another depodlie remaining
outstanding bill never gets collected. Mandy also wantéufdéom the group about
the City’s accepting credit cards for payments now. Sioetlsa Police department
has a place on their web site set up for payments to bebyaxtedit card on line
for fines. Mandy wanted to look into the City web site besagup to accept credit
cards for property taxes and utility bills. She said | aci&d TBS, the software
company we use in order to see what we needed to do and howrmanel it
would take for the City to install this feature. TBS onlg@yment system will not
allow the individuals a way to make their utility or pragdaax payment it will
allow the Attorneys offices a way to look up property texed the amounts. She
said the only draw back would be the property taxes which atelpa from a few
years back. The software will be set up for payment irohlly because we do not
accept partial payments, so the on line payments will beaime. Mandy said the
cost for this service is $5,480.00, which is a one time feermhadies travel and
on site training, and an annual charge of $2,100.00 charge or $p&5.6nth.
She asked the group to consider the on line payment packagd €ouncil
doesn’t want to agree to approve it now, we need to look inbte thé near future.
Mandy also asked the group how long they wanted the Solcitssumé held. She
said we were trying to hold off on the decision of a Sl due to the City’s
revenues. She said the property tax bills have now bded bhihd we need to
decide when we want to hire a Solicitor. She added the athwiaes paper and no
deadline was placed in the ad. Alderman Stalnaker, TuandrRetterbush agreed
to make the decision at the next Council meeting. Theyasked Mandy to place
the ad back in the paper and with GMA, and include a posted neddifore the
next Council meeting. Mandy also wanted to inform the Cibohthe upcoming
Round Table meeting which will be held on Thursday October 23, 208Gt
pm. The event will be held at the Berrien County Ag SerGenter, and they
request anyone attending to please RSVP by Wednesdaped@?2, 2008. She
also told the group about the group at Statewide settingougcanstruction
meeting for the lift station for the 06 CDBG. The wamschedule the meeting for
October 28 at 10:00 am. Alderman Turner asked Mandy what is the delay i
deciding on using Credit Bureau Associates for collestidMandy said there is no
delay and the Council can vote on it tonight because | hatvBeard back from
GMA on who they will be using from now on, and | don’'t hag/one else | can
look at. Alderman Turner said if there is no one elsa thiaink we should not
delay in the decision. Alderman Stalnaker agreed, anchsamds worked with
Credit Bureau Associates and they are good at what thdutajould like to
make sure we have investigated all of our options b&ferenake the decision.
Mandy said she will call GMA and see if they have decmiedomeone.
Alderman Stalnaker said then we should wait and make thei@eat the next
Council meeting. Alderman Retterbush agreed.

7. City Attorney’s Report- Mitchell Moore said he the first thing | need to
inform the Council is, | will be unable to attend the QadytRound Table
meeting due to another engagement. Mitchell updated thgp grothe yard debris
Ordinance, and stated this will be the first readindnisf ©rdinance. We deleted
Sec. 25-60 and 25-61 and substituted the following: Yard Debrigass
clippings, tree limbs, brushes or any other similar yaldisenay be deposited
into the container for household solid waste for dispodakuth yard debris shall
be removed by the property owner, resident or commercigatotl or deposited
on the street curbside for pick up by the City of NasévNo yard debris shall be
placed in street in such a manner as not to impair, iofpeaobstruct the storm



drainage system. Alderman Retterbush mentioned thedgdas that is blown
into the storm drain by residences, and should we address th& Ordinance.
Mitchell said blowing yard debris into the storm drain wouldihaolation
according to what we all ready have, if no other suggest®nan go ahead and
let this be the first reading of this Ordinance. Milthéso expressed his concern
about the new proposed Flood Map. He said he is a property owther khood
Zone so | will attend the meeting tomorrow because thegdaliciting the property
owners’ input. Mitchell also encouraged the Council to leeetlas well. Henry
Yawn told the group he received some information aboutrketing and the
process, will give out copies.

8. Department Heads’ Report-John Reynolds, the City Water department
head, ask the Council if they want to go ahead with th& wofront of the new
School. John said he has some bids but is unsure what ds poitfti, because the
City is not paying for the waterline. He commented it woelens the School
Board would hold some sort of meeting about this added job. AlaeTinaner

said we agreed to meet with them and we also agreed thea®sibt our
responsibility. Mitchell Moore said he, John and Mandy mett DOT last week
and the total given was around 1,470 feet of line totaljratite project area the
total is around 700 feet. So what the Council needs to decalbady is if we are
going to take up half of the 1,470 feet then we need to fakleeutotal, because it
will eventually present a problem. So the central isswall the School Board pay
for the total project or will they pay for half, whichas the project site. He also
said the School Board at this time is not volunteering to pawat is on the
project site, so we can be assured they will not pawkat is off the project site.
Mitchell said the other issue is how much and who is gtmnzay for it before we
can get the ball rolling. The next step for the City widug to allow John Reynolds
to make the permit request, because he will have toeberth to request it.
Mitchell added the School Board will soon be questioning whygdmstruction is
at a stand still because if it's not now, it soon will @eg if the Council directs me
to do so | will go to the School Board and tell them the Gityot paying for the
added project. Mitchell added, the DOT was suppose to runsomigers and
send them to the Engineer on the project but | have nad a@gthing further, so
we are going around in circles. Alderman Stalnaker cortedeme need to decide
something because with the disposal of this Hazmat miaterxiavill need a team
in place and the disposal of the material is not ch&mlrman Retterbush said the
disposal of these materials can run up to $20,000.00 according to m
investigations. He added that is just for the disposal itrdoeslude the new pipe
and labor. John Reynolds said the City has already spent $3%)@@0far on the
School Project. Alderman Retterbush made the motion totigevapproval for
Mitchell Moore to talk with the School Board about thess2ies and come to a
solution. Alderman Stalnaker seconded the motion anthtdt®n carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS/GENERAL COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL
None
EXECUTIVE SESSION
Alderman Retterbush made the motion to go into execuissien at 7:10 pm.

The motion was seconded by Alderman Stalnaker, and themt#rried
unanimously. Alderman Retterbush made the motion to @amhef executive



session at 7:15 pm. The motion was seconded by Alderm&rakeér, and the
motion carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to conduct, Aldermare®eth made a motion to

adjourn the meeting at 7:15 p.m. Alderman Stalnaker secondeddtion and the
motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Travis Harper

Alderman Bill Turner Alderwoman Pat Sutton
Alderman J. P. Watts Alderman Billy Rettetfbus
Alderman Scott Stalnaker Alderrivdohael Richbourg
ATTEST

Johnny Hall, City Clerk



